
AMENDED AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
Wednesday, September 25, 2024 - 2pm 

West Center Auditorium / Zoom 
*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (Vice President), Jim Carden (Secretary), 
Dave Barker, Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Nellie Johnson (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy Austin, Kathi 
Bachelor, Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report

5. Committee Reports
A. Audit - Austin
B. Board Affairs - Hillyer
C. Fiscal Affairs - Johnson
D. Investments - Johnson
E. Nominations & Elections - Blake
F. Planning & Evaluation - Carden

6. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: August 28, 2024

B. Financial Statements:
1) August Financials

7. Action Items
A. Election of Treasurer
B. Appointment of Fiscal Affairs Committee Chair
C. Direction from Board on West Center Club Expansion Project (Somers)
D. Rescind and Reapprove Federal Form 990 (Somers)

8. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes. Speakers are asked to provide their name and GVR member
number. This time is for comments, not for questions and answers.

9. Adjournment





MINUTES 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, August 28, 2024 - 2pm 

West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (Vice President), Jim Carden (Secretary), 
Carol Crothers (Treasurer), Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Nellie Johnson (Assistant 
Treasurer), Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola, 
Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Staff Present: Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David Webster (CFO) 

Visitors: 14 Including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum
The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2:00pm MST. Secretary Carden called the
roll; quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director Blake seconded to adopt the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. President Report

• Thanked members for attending the meeting.

• GVR is always looking for Board Directors to run in the 2025 elections and Committee
members to participate on committees.

• Thanked CEO Scott Somers and staff for the work they are doing for GVR.

• Del Sol Clubhouse is open. It is GVR’s first total social center. The vendor for the café is
in process and more information will come soon.

• More information will be provided about the Desert Hills pool during the CEO Report.

4. CEO Report
A. CEO Monthly Report

• Desert Hills: Aqua Design International was hired to study all pools, focusing on the
equipment. They found that the Desert Hills pool's auto-fill valve was running
continuously, suggesting a major leak. However, staff performed additional tests
that did not confirm a leak. Further assessments of the infrastructure will continue.

• Del Sol Clubhouse Café: Negotiations are ongoing with a potential tenant/vendor.
Legal counsel has reviewed the draft lease agreement and approved it. The lease
will now be sent to the tenant/vendor for their review.

• Budget: Staff is finalizing a balanced budget proposal for 2025. This proposal will be
presented at the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) meetings on September 17
(operations and fees) and September 24 (Capital Budget funding). A meeting with
the Planning & Evaluation Committee will be held on Thursday to develop a

Minutes August 28, 2024

1

NanciM
Underline



recommended 5-year Capital Plan, which will be presented to the Board during the 
October 9 Work Session. 

• Pool Maintenance: During the transition with GVR pool staff, pool maintenance
was outsourced, but the bid from the company was higher than expected. It was
determined that in-house staff can handle the maintenance at a lower cost. New
leadership and aquatics staff, qualified to manage basic maintenance and monitor
for issues, have been hired.

5. Presentations:
A. Quarterly Financial Report - Second Quarter

• Revenue: Effective through July 31, 2024. 3.2 percent under budget driven by
home sales being 20.7 percent under. Recreation is 45.1 percent over budget, but
there are dollar costs associated on the expense side.

• Expense: 2.8 percent over budget. The program line item is 49.6 percent over
budget. Due to outsourcing the personnel is a little over budget.

• Surplus summary: $59,000 deficit before the pencils were sharpened and staff was
able to get the deficit to zero.

• Statement of Financial Position: compares years – 2024 and 2023 – 3 percent
operating cash is down. Designated investment has declined by 2 percent due to
many projects happening.

• Investment: all positive returns and line up or exceed benchmarks. Investment
Committee looks at this thoroughly.

• Capital Projects: Del Sol Clubhouse renovation is getting ready to formally close out
the books. This project came in under budget.

• Initiatives Budget: There will be a new version of this budget. There is no steam
room at this point scheduled for Desert Hills.

6. Committee Reports – All committee reports verbally provided and placed on file.
A. Audit

MOTION: Director Garneau moved, Director Carden seconded to approve 990 Form.
Passed: unanimous

B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

7. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Austin seconded to approve Consent Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:

▪ BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: June 26, 2024
▪ BOD Work Session Minutes: August 14, 2024

B. Financial Statements:
▪ July Financials

8. Action Items
A. Approval of Release of Funds for Del Sol Clubhouse

MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the release of
$50,000 in budgeted funds for Del Sol Clubhouse food and beverage equipment,
electrical and plumbing improvements, and misc.

2



Passed: unanimous 

B. Approval of Use of MRR-B Funds Regarding Desert Hills Pool Project
MOTION: Director Garneau moved, Director Johnson seconded to approve use of MRR-B
funds for additional research into the potential failure and end of life of the Desert Hills
pool as well as potential design plans and member outreach.
Passed: unanimous

C. Ad Hoc Committee Regarding GVR Foundation – Task and Complete Date
MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director Carden seconded to approve the duties and
responsibilities for the completion of an Joint Ad-Hoc Committee with the GVR Board
and the GVR Foundation to explore its relationship with each other, appoint Bart Hillyer
as Chair with Carol Crothers and Nellie Johnson as other representatives and GVR
Foundation will appoint a chair and three other on the committee, with a deadline
completion of the Joint Committee of October 2024 with each Chair providing an
informational report provided to each Board at its monthly meeting.
Passed: 9 yes / 3 no (Bachelor, Dingman, Lawless)

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Hillyer moved, Director Blake seconded to amend to 
remove joint and keep as a GVR Ad-Hoc committee of 3.  
Passed: 9 yes / 3 no (Bachelor, Johnson, Lawless)   

AMENDED MOTION PASSED: 9 yes/ 3 no (Bachelor, Dingman, Lawless) 

Amended Motion: Approve the duties and responsibilities for the completion of an Ad-
Hoc Committee of three with the GVR Board and the GVR Foundation to explore its 
relationship with each other, appoint Bart Hillyer as Chair with Carol Crothers and Nellie 
Johnson as other representatives and GVR Foundation will appoint a chair and three 
other on the committee, with a deadline completion of the Ad-Hoc Committee of three 
October 2024 with each Chair providing an informational report to each Board at its 
monthly meeting. 

D. Ad Hoc Committee Regarding CEO Evaluation Process – Task and Completion Date
MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the duties and
responsibilities regarding the development of an assessment tool for the CEO evaluation
process, along with a deadline for its completion at the November Board of Directors
Regular meeting, and Bart Hillyer as the Chair of an Ad-Hoc Committee.
Passed:  9 yes / 3 no (Bachelor, Dingman, Lawless)

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Bachelor moved, Director Johnson to amend the motion 
to include a consultant for the Ad-Hoc Committee CEO Evaluation Process.  
Failed: 5 yes (Bachelor, Dingman, English, Johnson, Lawless) / 7 no  

E. Amend CPM to Allow Charging a Convenience Fee
MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director Bachelor seconded to amend the CPM in
Part 1 1.1.8 Member Payment Transactions to include “such as Credit card
transaction/service fees.” The revised section 1.1.8 will now read: Member payment
transactions, such as Credit card transaction/service fees, are subject to a processing
fee.

3



Passed:  unanimous 

9. Member Comments - (Limited to two (2) minutes) No comments

10. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Magliola seconded to adjourn the meeting at
4:05pm.
Passed: unanimous

4



August Financials

5



6



7



8



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 
Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Election of Treasurer  
Prepared By: Marilu Gamon, Admin. Asst. Meeting Date: September 25,2024   

 

Originating Department: 
Administration 
 

Action Requested: 
The Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) includes Part 2: Board of Directors, Section 
2 – Officers Election. The procedure in this section of the CPM will be followed 
at the September 25, 2024, Board of Directors Meeting for electing the 
Treasurer.  
 
Bylaws Article VII, Section 3 – Election of Officers gives a description of the four 
officers positions: President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. 
   

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation. 

Attachment: 
1) CPM Part 2: Board of Directors, Section 2 – Officers Election 
2) Bylaws Article VII, Section 3 - Election of Officers 

 

 

9



SECTION 2 - OFFICER ELECTIONS 
 
2.2.1 General 

A. Election of Board Officers will be done by secret ballot. This is applicable 
to both the nominating ballots and the electing ballots. 

B. Nominations from the floor will not be accepted.  
C. Election for each office follows its seniority in the Bylaws: President, Vice 

President, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Secretary, and Assistant 
Treasurer. 

D. The current President, or in his/her stead, the CEO shall administer the 
election until the new President has been elected. 

 
2.2.2 The Nominating Ballot 

A. The President will ask that nominating ballots be distributed to each 
Director. 

B. Each Director receiving a vote is nominated for that office. 
C. A nominating ballot cannot take the place of an electing ballot. 
D. Directors may nominate themselves for any Board office. 
E. Nominees must verbally indicate their willingness to serve before the 

electing ballot is distributed. 
F. The Chair will announce the names of the nominees and the number of 

nominations each received prior to the distribution of electing ballots. 
 
2.2.3 The Electing Ballot 

A. A nominee is considered “elected” if he/she receives a majority of the 
votes cast.       

B. Balloting should be repeated as many times as necessary to obtain a 
majority vote for one candidate. The nominee receiving the lowest 
number of votes is never removed from the next ballot.  

C. If a stalemate persists, the rules may be suspended in order to consider 
alternatives such as eliminating the candidate with the lowest number 
of votes. The motion to suspend the rules is not debatable and requires 
a 2/3 vote to pass. 

 
 

10



Bylaws 
 

ARTICLE VII — OFFICERS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Sec�on 3: Elec�on of Officers 

Officers shall be elected by a majority vote of the Board within thirty days a�er the Annual 
Mee�ng. 

Sec�on 4: Responsibili�es of Officers 

A. President. The President shall preside at all mee�ngs of the Board of Directors and at 
mee�ngs of the membership and shall carry out all orders and resolu�ons of the Board of 
Directors and shall sign all formal writen instruments such as notes, leases, mortgages, deeds, 
and contracts other than recurring opera�onal contracts which the Board by appropriate 
resolu�on has exempted from this requirement. Contracts signed by the President must receive 
prior legal review and Board approval. The President shall nominate chairpersons of the Board 
Commitees, submit these nominees for Board approval, and in coopera�on with the Chief 
Execu�ve Officer, ensure effec�ve work of these commitees. In the absence of the President, 
the Vice President shall perform all the du�es of the President. Should the Vice President also 
be absent, the du�es of the President shall be performed by the Senior Officer present. 

B. Vice President. The Vice President shall carry out du�es as assigned by the President. In the 
absence of the President, the Vice President shall perform the du�es of the President and, 
when so ac�ng, shall have all the powers of the President. 

C. Secretary. The Secretary shall ensure that minutes are kept of mee�ngs of the Membership 
and the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall cause to be given all no�ces in accordance with 
provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law. The Secretary shall see that all records of The 
Corpora�on are properly kept and preserved and that the names and addresses of all members 
of The Corpora�on are on file in the office of The Corpora�on. In the absence of the Secretary, 
the Assistant Secretary shall perform all the du�es of the Secretary. 

D. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall exercise an oversight role of the financial affairs of The 
Corpora�on to ensure that financial records are kept in accordance with generally accepted 
accoun�ng standards. The Treasurer shall ensure that �mely, accurate financial statements are 
presented to the Directors and that the financial records of The Corpora�on are audited in 
accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws. In the absence of the Treasurer, the Assistant 
Treasurer shall perform all the du�es of the Treasurer. 

11



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 
Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Appointment of Fiscal Affairs Committee Chair  
Prepared By: Marilu Gamon, Admin. Asst. Meeting Date: September 25,2024  

 

Originating Department: 
Administration 
 

Action Requested: 
GVR Bylaws require that a Board member chair all committees.  
 
Approve President Garneau's nomination of Dave Barker as Chair of the Fiscal 
Affairs Committee 
  
Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation. 

Attachment: 
N/A 

 
 

 

12



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
West Center Clubs Expansion Project 

Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO Meeting Date: 9/25/24 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: NA 

Originating Committee / Department: Facilities 

Action Requested: Provide direction to staff on West Center clubs expansion project(s) 

Strategic Plan, GOAL 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of 
active and social opportunities  

Background Justification: 
During the Board work session of August 14, 2024 (Minutes and staff reports attached), three 
West Center clubs, Woodshop, Lapidary, and Artisans each presented their club’s needs for 
expansion. Board members discussed the possibility of expanding the Lapidary space 
separate from the Woodshop space, versus combining both expansions into one project. If 
each expansion project were to be treated separately, then a vote of the membership would 
not likely be required since the contractual cost of each project would likely be less than the 
Bylaws threshold member vote requirement of exceeding 12% of audited revenue totals 
(approximately $1,500,000). Board consensus at the end of the meeting was for staff to 
contact the County to determine the feasibility of expansion of the Woodshop to the east as 
a separate project. Regardless of the decision to treat each expansion as separate or to 
combine both expansions into one project, the Artisans’ Shop would expand into a portion of 
the vacated Billiards room.  

Staff has been informed by the County that expansion of the Woodshop to the east is in fact 
feasible, but the conditions of such an expansion are not yet known; however, they could 
include requirements such as additional parking spaces, extension of sidewalks, and an 
unlikely requirement of additional restrooms. The Board first needs to decide on if the 
Lapidary and Woodshop expansions will be treated as one combined project or as two 
separate projects. Options with estimated costs and anticipated square footage are listed 
here:  

West Center Expansion Options for Consideration (see attached site plans) 

Option 1: Lapidary Expansion to the South, Wood Shop Expansion to the East (two separate 
projects) 
This option calls for the outward expansion of both clubs. The Lapidary Club space would be 
expanded by 1,975 square feet to the south towards GVR Drive. The Woodworkers Club 
space would be expanded by 2,970 square feet into the east parking lot. This expansion may 
require the relocation of seven parking spaces plus adding a few more parking spaces per the 
Pima County building code. A variance could be requested and preliminary conversation with 

Action Item 7.A

13



Pima suggests that variances are issued routinely. Please note, Option 1 is the preferred 
option of the Woodworkers Club.  

Option 2: Lapidary and Wood Shop Expansion to the South (one project) 
This option calls for one contiguous addition of work space to the south toward GVR Drive. 
The Lapidary Club space would be expanded by 1,975 square feet, and the Woodworkers 
Club space would be expanded by 2,559 square feet. The combined addition would be 4,534 
square feet. A few additional parking spaces may be required per the Pima County building 
code, but again, a variance from the County could be granted.  

Ballpark Cost Estimates 
During the preliminary phase of design, cost estimation cannot be specific. It is very general 
based on cost per square foot by type of building and use classification. West Center can be 
considered a combination of commercial office space and warehouse/manufacturing space. 
GVR staff researched some online sources that have recent construction costs for these 
building types. Once there is a commitment to fully design Construction Documents, then a 
more detailed estimate can be developed. Ultimately, an estimate is just an estimate until 
bids are received. 

The below ballpark construction cost estimates are based on $300 per square foot using 2023 
data from a construction company website. This does not include planning, design, permits, 
materials testing, or FF&E (furniture, fixtures, and equipment).  

Existing Space: total 9,469 square feet 
• Art Shop/Gallery = 525 SF
• Billiards Room = 1,072 SF
• Lapidary Shop = 1,206 SF
• Wood Shop = 6,666 SF

Option 1: Lapidary Expansion to the South, Wood Shop Expansion to the East (two separate 
projects) 

• Lapidary Shop = 1,975 additional SF = $592,500
• Wood Shop = 2,970 additional SF = $891,000
• Total = 4,945 SF = $1,483,500 + $24,000 for possible additional parking

Option 2: Lapidary and Wood Shop Expansion to the South (one project) 
• Lapidary Shop = 1,975 additional SF = $592,000
• Wood Shop = 2,559 additional SF = $767,700
• Total = 4,534 SF = $1,360,200 + $10,000 for possible additional parking

Should Option 1 be the preferred option, the Board will need to decide which project moves 
forward first. Staff recommends the Lapidary Club expansion project move forward first since 
this would allow the Ceramics Club to expand into the Lapidary Club’s vacated space at 
Desert Hills sooner, thereby addressing the needs of two clubs much sooner. 

Per the Board’s Capital Improvement Pilot Policy, next steps include completing construction 
documents, obtaining County permits, going out for bid, and developing a recommendation 
for the Board to consider awarding a contract to begin construction in 2025.  

14



Fiscal Impact: 
The 2025 Recommended Budget includes $900,000 for 2025 and $1,000,000 for 2026 from 
the Initiatives Fund.  

Board Options: 
1. Direct staff to pursue Option 1 (2 separate projects) AND decide which project moves

forward first.
2. Direct staff to pursue Option 2 (1 combined project) and prepare a ballot question for

the March election, asking the members if they support awarding a contract that may
exceed 12% of the audited total revenue for 2024 (approximately $1,500,000).
(Should this option be the Board’s preferred option, the Board will need to direct staff
to have construction documents completed BEFORE or AFTER the March ballot
measure is decided. If construction documents are delayed until after the election,
there is a possibility the project will not move forward until 2026)

3. Direct staff to conduct additional research.
4. Make no decision at this time.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion: 
I move to direct staff to pursue Option 1, as detailed above, with the Lapidary Club expansion 
project moving forward first which allows the Ceramics Club to expand into the Lapidary 
Club’s vacated space at Desert Hills sooner.  

Attachments: 
1. Expansion options 1 and 2
2. August 14, 2024 Worksession Minutes and Staff Report
3. June 19, 2024 Staff Report
4. Letter from Ron Schuster, President of the Woodworkers Club and Woodworkers Club

preferred expansion floor plan

15



16



Attachment 1

17



18



Attachment 2

19



20



21



22



23



24



Attachment 3

25



26



27



28



Attachment 4

29



30



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Rescind and Reapprove 990 Form 
Prepared By: Nellie Johnson, Director Meeting Date: 9/25/24 

Presented By: Nellie Johnson, Director Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: Director Johnson 

Action Requested: Rescind the Board’s action of August 28th approving the completed 
federal 990 form and reapprove the completed federal 990 form as presented to the Board. 

Strategic Plan: 
Goal #5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
After reviewing the events of the August 28th Board meeting, I sent an email to the President 
and the Board members questioning whether the board’s actions regarding the approval of 
federal form 990 followed the Corporate Policy Manual procedures. The form was not listed 
as an action item on the agenda.  Rather it was added by the Chair of the Audit Committee as 
part of her verbal Committee report and then voted on as part of this Committee report.   

Furthermore, the form was not included in the meeting book, which meant that most board 
members voted on something they hadn't reviewed. Additionally, the GVR website indicates 
an Audit Committee meeting on April 22nd, but there were no other committee meetings 
noted where this 990 form was available or reviewed. The Board Calendar for future 
Committee meetings doesn’t have any Audit Committee meetings for the rest of the year.  

Given the significance of the federal form 990, which requires board review, I believe it's 
crucial to rectify the Board's actions from the previous meeting. Therefore, I propose a two-
part motion: rescind the Board’s action of August 28th approving the completed federal 990 
form and reapprove the completed federal 990 form as presented to the Board. It's 
important for us to adhere to corporate policies regarding items placed on the agenda for 
board action. 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Action Item 7.B

31



Board Options: 
1. Rescind the Board’s action of August 28th approving the completed federal 990 form

and reapprove the completed federal 990 form as presented to the Board.
2. Take no action.
3. Provide alternate direction to staff.

Staff Recommendation 
Option #1 to ensure Board members and the general membership are able to review material 
prior to Board consideration. 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to rescind the Board’s action of August 28th approving the completed federal 990 form 
and reapprove the completed federal 990 form as presented to the Board. 

Attachments: 
1. Form 990 and related documents

32



Attachment 1

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Ammended Portion Regular Meeting Book.pdf
	Attachment CPM Part 2 Section 2 Officers Election.pdf
	SECTION 2 - OFFICER ELECTIONS





